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May 26, 2020 File No. 2200555 

BY E-MAIL 

  

 

City of Vaughan 

Committee of Adjustment 

2141 Major MacKenzie Drive 

Vaughan, Ontario 

L6A 1T1 

 

 

Dear Ms. Christine Vigneault: 

RE: York Region Condominium Corporation No. 1105 (the "Corporation") 

Minor Variance Application File No. A012/20 (the "Application") 

Market Lane Holdings Inc. (the "Applicant") 

166 Woodbridge Avenue, Unit A, City of Vaughan (the "Property") 

 

We are the lawyers of the Corporation. 

The Corporation manages a residential building located at 160 Woodbridge Avenue, Vaughan, 

Ontario. The Corporation strongly opposes the proposed variance and asks that the Committee of 

Adjustment not to approve the Application. In the alternative, the Corporation requests that: 

• the Application be deferred until sufficient noise, odour, traffic and parking studies 

can be completed; or 

• if the Application is to be approved, that the approval include conditions to 

adequately address the concerns of the Corporation as set out in greater detail below.  

Background 

The Applicant is requesting permission to operate an eating establishment (a café) within the 

Property which is currently not permitted under the site-specific zoning by-law. The property is 

zoned “RA2 Apartment Residential Zone” by Zoning By-law 1-88, subject to site specific exception 
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9(1201) which permits the ground floor commercial space to be used for business and professional 

offices, a bank and/or financial institution, personal service shops and retail stores.  

The Property is designated “Low-Rise Mixed-Use” within the Woodbridge Centre Secondary Plan 

of Vaughan Official Plan 2010, which permits eating establishments provided that they are located at 

grade level.  

Site Specific Use 

As set out above, the site specific zoning by-law permits only a very specific list of uses that may be 

permitted within the Property. While the Corporation has no knowledge of the specific 

considerations that caused the Property to be subject to such limited uses, it is clear that the City of 

Vaughan turned its mind to the most appropriate use of the Property at the time the site specific 

exemption was put in place. Had the City of Vaughan intended to permit an eating establishment 

within the Property, the City of Vaughan could have included the use in the site specific exemption.  

The Corporation submits that the use of the Property as an eating establishment would not be 

appropriate for the following reasons. 

Traffic 

There are presently very serious vehicular traffic flow concerns in light of the location of ingress and 

egress points and parking areas within the Corporation's property. Woodbridge Avenue is already a 

very busy road with a 4 way stop in front of the Property. Pedestrian traffic congestion remains very 

high in this area (in part because of the an abundance of pedestrian traffic created by an adjacent 

development) and will intensify significantly if an eating establishment is permitted within the 

Property. 

Parking 

The Corporation currently has difficulty providing sufficient visitor parking for the guests of its 

residents because patrons the commercial establishments within 166 Woodbridge Avenue make use 

of a portion of the Corporation's visitor parking.  Permitting any portion of 166 Woodbridge Avenue 

to be used as a restaurant would only further reduce the availability of parking for the guests of the 

Corporation's residents.   

Noise and Odour 

The Corporation's residents are concerned with noise that may be created if an eating establishment 

is permitted within the Property. Further, residents of units on the east side of the building are 

currently affected by odours omitted from existing eating establishments in an adjacent 

development. While the Corporation understands that there is no required minimum separation 

between residential land and other land uses, it is clear that the limited distance between these uses 

can cause a nuisance and disturb the use and enjoyment of the building by the Corporation's 

residents. The Corporation notes that it is not uncommon for a municipality to require there to be a 

minimum separation distance between residential land and other land uses in light of the competing 
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nature of various land uses. For example, the City of Mississauga requires that an eating 

establishment be separated at least 60m from residential land. 

Requested Relief 

The Property is not a suitable location for an eating establishment. It would be unfair to subject the 

Corporation's residents to nuisances that will arise from permitting an eating establishment within 

the Property.  

In light of the foregoing, the Corporation request that the Application not be approved. In the 

alternative, the Corporation requests that the Application be deferred until sufficient noise, odour 

and parking studies can be completed, or if approved, that the approval be subject to certain 

conditions providing that: 

(a) the Applicant complete and submit of noise, odour, traffic and parking studies to the 

satisfaction of the Committee of Adjustment; 

(b) the Applicant complete and submit a parking plan illustrating how the parking needs 

of the Property will be satisfied; 

(c) no line may be formed that extends beyond the boundary of the Property; 

(d) no more than of ten (10) persons (including staff) may be permitted within the 

Property at any one (1) time; 

(e) the eating establishment close each day no later than 9:00p.m.; 

(f) the eating establishment be prohibited from selling or serving alcohol; and 

(g) the eating establishment not include any warming, heating, cooking, and/or 

preparatory facilities whatsoever. 

While the Corporation recognizes that development must continue, the Corporation insists that good 

planning includes the consideration of adjacent existing uses. To that end, enclosed with this letter is 

a petition circulated amongst adjacent property owners and owners of units in the Corporation as 

well as the specific concerns of certain individuals that oppose permitting an eating establishment 

within the Property. 

Yours truly 

 

SHIBLEY RIGHTON LLP 

 
Evan Holt 

Enclosures 
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City of Vaughan 
Committee of Adjustment 
2141 Major Mackenzie Drive 
Vaughan, ON L6A 1T1 
 
Dear Committee Members, 
 
Re:  Minor Variance Application A012/20 

166 Woodbridge Ave. Unit A, Woodbridge ON 
        Relief from By-law to permit Restaurant 

 
We the undersigned strongly object to the variance application noted above to allow a 
Restaurant for the following reasons and ask that you consider the interests of the community 
members impacted by this proposed relief from the existing by-law: 
 

1. 166 Woodbridge Ave. is built into a residential condominium building at 160 
Woodbridge Ave. which will be impacted by carbon monoxide and smoke from the 
required exhaust fans of a restaurant. 
 

2. 166 Woodbridge Ave.’s water supply and sanitary services are connected to 160 
Woodbridge Ave and are not designed to handle the additional demands of a 
restaurant. 
 

3. 166 Woodbridge Ave. does not have land for the storage or removal of grease and 
waste/recycling. 
 

4. 166 Woodbridge Ave. does not have a loading area or site parking for the delivery of 
supplies. 
 

5. 166 Woodbridge Ave. does not have any parking spaces for employees or patrons other 
than limited street parking on Woodbridge Ave. 
 

6.  166 Woodbridge Ave. does not have barrier free access. 
 

7. 166 Woodbridge Ave. is a historical building constructed of combustible materials and 
would be an irreplaceable loss as well as posing a hazard to adjacent properties. 

 
 
Thank you for your consideration and respect for the community, 
 
  






























